
Morrow County Board of Commissioners Agenda Page 1 of 2  

MORROW COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA 
Wednesday, September 2, 2020 at 9:00 a.m. 

Bartholomew Building Upper Conference Room 
Heppner, Oregon 

Zoom Meeting Info on Page 2 
 

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance:  9:00 a.m. 
2. City/Citizen Comments:  Individuals may address the Board on topics not on the agenda 
3. Open Agenda:  The Board may introduce subjects not on the agenda 
4. Consent Calendar 

a. Accounts Payable and Payroll Payables 
b. Minutes:  August 12th  
c. Oregon Liquor Control Commission, Liquor License Application, Marker 40 Golf 

Club/Port of Morrow 
5. Business Items 

a. Contract with Morrow County Health District, School Based Health Center 2020-
2023 (Diane Kilkenny, Interim Public Health Director) 

b. Sheriff’s Office Request to Purchase Communication Console (Undersheriff John 
Bowles) 

c. Irrigon Building Update/Guaranteed Maximum Price (Darrell Green, 
Administrator) 

d. County Needs Assessment Questionnaire on COVID-19 
e. Morrow County Government Command Center Update 

i. Letter to the Governor Requesting Phase II Opening 
f. UEC Easement Request Update (Justin Nelson, County Counsel) 

6. Department Reports - Written 
a. Administrator’s Monthly Report 
b. Sheriff’s Office Monthly Report 
c. Treasurer’s Monthly Report 

7. Correspondence 
8. Commissioner Reports 
9. Executive Session:  Pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(e) – To conduct deliberations with 

persons designated by the governing body to negotiate real property transactions 
10. Signing of documents 
11. Adjournment 

 
Agendas are available every Friday on our website (www.co.morrow.or.us/boc under 
“Upcoming Events”).  Meeting Packets can also be found the following Monday. 

 
The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the 
hearing impaired or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at 
least 48 hours before the meeting to Roberta Lutcher at (541) 676-5613. 

 
Pursuant to ORS 192.640, this agenda includes a list of the principal subjects anticipated to be 
considered at the meeting; however, the Board may consider additional subjects as well. This 
meeting is open to the public and interested citizens are invited to attend. Executive sessions are 
closed to the public; however, with few exceptions and under specific guidelines, are open to the 
media. The Board may recess for lunch depending on the anticipated length of the meeting and 

http://www.co.morrow.or.us/boc


Morrow County Board of Commissioners Agenda Page 2 of 2  

the topics on the agenda. If you have anything that needs to be on the agenda, please notify the  
 
Board office before noon of the preceding Friday. If something urgent comes up after this 
publication deadline, please notify the office as soon as possible. If you have any questions about 
items listed on the agenda, please contact Darrell J. Green, Administrator at (541) 676-2529. 

 
Zoom Meeting Information 

 

Morrow County Board of Commissioners is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.  Join 
Zoom Meeting:  https://zoom.us/j/5416762546 
 
PASSWORD: 97836 Meeting ID: 541-676-2546 

 
Zoom Call-In Numbers for Audio Only: 

• 1-346-248-7799, Meeting ID:  541 676 2546# 
• 1-669-900-6833, Meeting ID:  541 676 2546# 
• 1-312-626-6799, Meeting ID: 541-676-2546# 
• 1-929-436-2866, Meeting ID: 541-676-2546# 
• 1-253-215-8782, Meeting ID: 541-676-2546# 
• 1-301-715-8592, Meeting ID: 541-676-2546# 

 
Meeting ID: 541-676-2546 
Find your local number: https://zoom.us/u/abD3eWKYVW 

https://zoom.us/j/5416762546
https://zoom.us/u/abD3eWKYVW














































From: Jeff Butler <Jeff.Butler@fortisconstruction.com>  
Sent: Monday, August 31, 2020 5:23 PM 
To: Darrell Green <dgreen@co.morrow.or.us>; Don Russell <drussell@co.morrow.or.us>; Blankenship, 
Becky <BeckyBlankenship@hillintl.com>; Anthony Clement <aclement@co.morrow.or.us> 
Cc: Lowell Weller <Lowell.Weller@fortisconstruction.com>; Mya Paluch <myap@cidainc.com>; Leslie 
Jones <lesliej@cidainc.com>; Jim Maher <Jim.Maher@fortisconstruction.com>; Dan Smith 
<Dan.Smith@fortisconstruction.com>; Jennifer Beattie (jenniferb@cidainc.com) 
<jenniferb@cidainc.com> 
Subject: Morrow Co Admin Bldg. - Ph2 GMP Proposal 
 
STOP and VERIFY - This message came from outside of Morrow County Government.  

 
 
Morrow County team – Attached is our Phase 2 GMP proposal for the Morrow County Administration 
Building.  We’ve come a long way over the last couple of months. Thank you all for your help and input 
getting us this far.  Obviously we are very hopeful to complete the design and kick off construction of 
your new space later this year.   
 
Due to the size of the design documents we have linked to them here: 100% DD Project Documents 
 
Should you have any questions regarding the attached proposal or project design documents please let 
us know.  We have also been successful reviewing the budget deliverables as a group in the past.  If 
available we could do this again during our standard Thursday OAC time slot.  If this is of value please 
just let us know. 
 
Thanks for the opportunity and relationship, 
 
Jeff Butler | LEED® AP | Fortis Construction, Inc.| 503 849 9013 c | fortisconstruction.com 
 

mailto:Jeff.Butler@fortisconstruction.com
mailto:dgreen@co.morrow.or.us
mailto:drussell@co.morrow.or.us
mailto:BeckyBlankenship@hillintl.com
mailto:aclement@co.morrow.or.us
mailto:Lowell.Weller@fortisconstruction.com
mailto:myap@cidainc.com
mailto:lesliej@cidainc.com
mailto:Jim.Maher@fortisconstruction.com
mailto:Dan.Smith@fortisconstruction.com
mailto:jenniferb@cidainc.com
mailto:jenniferb@cidainc.com
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2ffortisconstruction.sharefile.com%2fd-s6fee122417944c19&c=E,1,od7Wnu8qRJX79kHCkeAs8GaS0SBKnOWuHlvJ8hHj2D8Qz2d2BOlPp7ro3gBsBrV_lu7Zi24xcHpcTMbgvkhqGQYgneNiJvf5WXKRlVj84TdvPa-eSw,,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2ffortisconstruction.com&c=E,1,CPcpP6RCy2CM8-DgR66bRxAEji0_QgoDMrh5gWTzWs-JVpmRWFyMnNuSWVT-r0F-B9CfLLmhgJDs5R_rWDNlI61yvjB8w8TZqxDgOVs_03TeyoqHwa9q&typo=1


Morrow County Administration Building

Phase 2 GMP Proposal Submitted to Morrow County

August 31, 2020 - Estimate 4 Rev 0



Executive Summary

Estimate No. 4

Revision No. 0

Estimate Date: August 31, 2020

Documents dated August 24, 2020

Client:  Morrow County
Architect:  CIDA
Precon Manager: Jeff Butler

Project Location:  Irrigon, Or

Project Duration:  50 weeks

Project Size:  13,262 sf

Exhibit E Form Phase 2 Amendment Scope Description:

a. Proposed GMP itemized amounts

i. Design Builder’s Lump Sum Fee: $272,419
ii. Cost of work: $5,503,408
iii. Lump Sum General Conditions: $1,024,173
iv. Allowances: None
v. Cost of Work Contingency:

a. Cost of Work Contingency $62,035
a. Design Builder's Contingency $132,604

vi. Incentive Payment to the Design Builder: None
vii. In support of the GMP

a. Not to Exceed Amounts: N/A
b. Lump Sums: Fortis will utilize lump sub 
subcontracts for all scopes included within the 
Cost of Work

d. Material changes from Initial Basis of 
Design: No deviations from Basis of Design 
documents.

6,800,000$                           Total 512.74$        /sf

Phase 2 GMP Proposal

Morrow County Administration Building

  COST $6,800,000

Construction Costs 512.74$        /sf 6,800,000$                           

c. Assumptions and Clarifications: See Bases 
of Estimate

Construction of a new 13,262 SF building to house a 
variety of co-located Morrow County functions, including 
the Planning Department, Justice Court, District 
Attorney, Sheriff, Veterans Services, and Juvenile 
Department.

jeff.butler@fortisconstruction.com

Page 2 of 12



Morrow County Administration Building

c. Project Schedule



ID % Complete Task Name Duration Start Finish

1 29% Master Schedule 447 days Mon 2/24/20 Wed 11/24/21
2 29% Morrow County Admin Building 447 days Mon 2/24/20 Wed 11/24/21
3 0% Key Project Milestones 447 days Mon 2/24/20 Wed 11/24/21
4 100% Phase 1 Milestones 134 days Mon 2/24/20 Mon 8/31/20
5 100% Notice to Proceed with Phase 1 0 days Mon 2/24/20 Mon 2/24/20
6 100% Concept Phase Complete 0 days Fri 5/8/20 Fri 5/8/20
7 100% Schematic Design Phase Complete 0 days Mon 6/22/20 Mon 6/22/20
8 100% Phase 1 Complete - Submit Phase 2 GMP Proposal 0 days Mon 8/31/20 Mon 8/31/20
9 0% Phase 2 Milestones 308 days Tue 9/8/20 Wed 11/24/21
10 0% Notice to Proceed with Phase 2 - GMP Proposal Approved 0 days Tue 9/8/20 Tue 9/8/20
11 0% Building Permit Issued by 0 days Thu 11/12/20 Thu 11/12/20
12 0% Mobilization & Construction Start 0 days Mon 11/16/20 Mon 11/16/20
13 0% Slab-On-Grade Poured 0 days Fri 2/5/21 Fri 2/5/21
14 0% Building Structure Topped Out 0 days Fri 4/2/21 Fri 4/2/21
15 0% Building Dried-In 0 days Fri 5/14/21 Fri 5/14/21
16 0% Flooring Install Commence 0 days Mon 6/28/21 Mon 6/28/21
17 0% Furniture Install Commence 0 days Wed 8/18/21 Wed 8/18/21
18 0% New Building - Temporary Certificate of Occupancy 0 days Wed 9/8/21 Wed 9/8/21
19 0% Morrow Co First Day of Business 0 days Thu 9/16/21 Thu 9/16/21
20 0% Parking Work Complete - Project Substantial Completion 0 days Wed 10/27/21 Wed 10/27/21
21 0% Project Final Completion 0 days Wed 11/24/21 Wed 11/24/21
22 80% Design 171 days Mon 2/24/20 Thu 10/22/20
23 100% Concept Design - BOD Validation & Site Investigations 8 wks Mon 2/24/20 Fri 4/17/20
24 100% Morrow Co Review / Approve Concept Design / Estimate 10 days Mon 4/13/20 Fri 4/24/20
25 100% Schematic Design - 0% to 50% 4 wks Mon 4/20/20 Fri 5/15/20
26 100% Schematic Design - 50% to 100% 4 wks Mon 5/18/20 Mon 6/15/20
27 100% Morrow Co Review / Approve 100% SD Deliverable 5 days Tue 6/16/20 Mon 6/22/20
28 100% Design Development - 0% to 60% 4 wks Tue 6/16/20 Tue 7/14/20
29 100% Design Development - 60% to 100% 4 wks Wed 7/15/20 Tue 8/11/20
30 100% GMP Extension 14 days Wed 8/12/20 Mon 8/31/20
31 0% Morrow Co Review / Approve Phase 1 GMP Proposal 5 days Tue 9/1/20 Tue 9/8/20
32 0% Construction Documents 32 days Wed 9/9/20 Thu 10/22/20
33 89% Preconstruction 196 days Mon 2/24/20 Mon 11/30/20
34 100% Concept Estimating & Preliminary GMP SOV 11 wks Mon 2/24/20 Fri 5/8/20
35 100% Schematic Design - Cost Studies, Trends, Estimate 8 wks Mon 4/20/20 Mon 6/15/20
36 100% Design Development - Cost Studies, Trends, GMP 54 days Tue 6/16/20 Mon 8/31/20
37 100% Early Buy-Out - Pre-Engineered Metal Building and Skin 4 wks Tue 6/23/20 Tue 7/21/20
38 100% Early Buy-Out - Site Work & MEP/FP 4 wks Wed 7/15/20 Tue 8/11/20
39 100% Morrow Co Review / Approve Sub Award Recs 5 days Wed 8/12/20 Tue 8/18/20
40 0% GMP Buy-Out - Interior Finishes 4 wks Fri 10/23/20 Thu 11/19/20
41 0% Morrow Co Review / Approve Sub Award Recs 5 days Fri 11/20/20 Mon 11/30/20
42 45% Permitting 86 days Wed 7/15/20 Thu 11/12/20
43 70% Conditional Use Permit 11 wks Wed 7/15/20 Wed 9/30/20
44 0% Zoning Permit 3 wks Thu 10/1/20 Wed 10/21/20
45 0% Building Permit 3 wks Fri 10/23/20 Thu 11/12/20
46 0% Material Procurement (Includes Submittal Process) 161 days Wed 7/22/20 Thu 3/11/21
47 0% Building Structure 24 wks Wed 7/22/20 Wed 1/13/21
48 0% Site Utilities / Concrete / Rebar 7 wks Wed 9/9/20 Tue 10/27/20
49 0% Building Skin Materials 14 wks Wed 9/9/20 Thu 12/17/20
50 0% MEP / FP Major Equipment 20 wks Wed 9/9/20 Tue 2/2/21
51 0% Interior Finishes 12 wks Tue 12/1/20 Thu 2/25/21
52 0% Furniture (By Others) 14 wks Tue 12/1/20 Thu 3/11/21
53 0% Main Building Construction 190 days Mon 11/16/20 Tue 8/17/21
54 0% Demolition, Site Work & Utilities 6 wks Mon 11/16/20 Thu 12/31/20
55 0% Building Pad, Underground MEP & Foundations 6 wks Wed 12/23/20 Fri 2/5/21
56 0% Building Structure 8 wks Mon 2/8/21 Fri 4/2/21
57 0% Building Skin 8 wks Mon 3/22/21 Fri 5/14/21
58 0% Interior Rough-In 7 wks Mon 4/26/21 Mon 6/14/21
59 0% Interior Finishes 9 wks Tue 6/1/21 Tue 8/3/21
60 0% Site Work - Hardscape / Landscaping / Accessories 4 wks Wed 7/7/21 Tue 8/3/21
61 0% Exterior Finishes 3 wks Wed 7/21/21 Tue 8/10/21
62 0% Weather Allowance 1 wk Wed 8/11/21 Tue 8/17/21
63 0% FF&E & Move-In 20 days Wed 8/18/21 Wed 9/15/21
64 0% Furniture 3 wks Wed 8/18/21 Wed 9/8/21
65 0% Low Voltage Cabling 3 wks Wed 8/18/21 Wed 9/8/21
66 0% Audio Visual 3 wks Wed 8/18/21 Wed 9/8/21
67 0% Morrow Co Move-In 1 wk Thu 9/9/21 Wed 9/15/21
68 0% Post Move Parking Area Construction 30 days Thu 9/16/21 Wed 10/27/21
69 0% Demolition & Abatement of Irrigon Annex 2 wks Thu 9/16/21 Wed 9/29/21
70 0% Site Utilities & Grading for Parking Area 3 wks Thu 9/30/21 Wed 10/20/21
71 0% Paving, Striping, Landscaping 1 wk Thu 10/21/21 Wed 10/27/21
72 0% Post Construction Activities 20 days Thu 10/28/21 Wed 11/24/21
73 0% Close-Out Documents 4 wks Thu 10/28/21 Wed 11/24/21
74 0% Owner Training 4 wks Thu 10/28/21 Wed 11/24/21

2/24 Master Schedule

2/24 Morrow County Admin Building

2/24 Key Project Milestones

2/24 Phase 1 Milestones

2/24 Notice to Proceed with Phase 1

5/8 Concept Phase Complete

6/22 Schematic Design Phase Complete

8/31 Phase 1 Complete - Submit Phase 2 GMP Proposal

9/8 Phase 2 Milestones

9/8 Notice to Proceed with Phase 2 - GMP Proposal Approved

11/12 Building Permit Issued by Morrow Co

11/16 Mobilization & Construction Start

2/5 Slab-On-Grade Poured

4/2 Building Structure Topped Out

5/14 Building Dried-In

6/28 Flooring Install Commence

8/18 Furniture Install Commence

9/8 New Building - Temporary Certificate of Occupancy

9/16 Morrow Co First Day of Business

10/27 Parking Work Complete - Project Substantial Completion

11/24 Project Final Completion

2/24 Design

2/24 Concept Design - BOD Validation & Site Investigations

4/13 Morrow Co Review / Approve Concept Design / Estimate

4/20 Schematic Design - 0% to 50%

5/18 Schematic Design - 50% to 100%

6/16 Morrow Co Review / Approve 100% SD Deliverable

6/16 Design Development - 0% to 60%

7/15 Design Development - 60% to 100%

8/12 GMP Extension

9/1 Morrow Co Review / Approve Phase 1 GMP Proposal

9/9 Construction Documents 

2/24 Preconstruction

2/24 Concept Estimating & Preliminary GMP SOV

4/20 Schematic Design - Cost Studies, Trends, Estimate

6/16 Design Development - Cost Studies, Trends, GMP

6/23 Early Buy-Out - Pre-Engineered Metal Building and Skin

7/15 Early Buy-Out - Site Work & MEP/FP

8/12 Morrow Co Review / Approve Sub Award Recs

10/23 GMP Buy-Out - Interior Finishes

11/20 Morrow Co Review / Approve Sub Award Recs

7/15 Permitting

7/15 Conditional Use Permit

10/1 Zoning Permit

10/23 Building Permit

7/22 Material Procurement (Includes Submittal Process)

7/22 Building Structure

9/9 Site Utilities / Concrete / Rebar

9/9 Building Skin Materials

9/9 MEP / FP Major Equipment

12/1 Interior Finishes

12/1 Furniture (By Others)

11/16 Main Building Construction 

11/16 Demolition, Site Work & Utilities

12/23 Building Pad, Underground MEP & Foundations

2/8 Building Structure

3/22 Building Skin

4/26 Interior Rough-In

6/1 Interior Finishes

7/7 Site Work - Hardscape / Landscaping / Accessories

7/21 Exterior Finishes

8/11 Weather Allowance

8/18 FF&E & Move-In

8/18 Furniture

8/18 Low Voltage Cabling

8/18 Audio Visual

9/9 Morrow Co Move-In

9/16 Post Move Parking Area Construction

9/16 Demolition & Abatement of Irrigon Annex

9/30 Site Utilities & Grading for Parking Area

10/21 Paving, Striping, Landscaping

10/28 Post Construction Activities

10/28 Close-Out Documents

10/28 Owner Training

J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F
Half 1, 2020 Half 2, 2020 Half 1, 2021 Half 2, 2021

Morrow County Administration Building
Master Project Schedule 

Updated August 31, 2020

Page 1

City of Irrigon



d. Systems Summary - Schedule of Values

Morrow County Administration Building

Based on Documents dated August 24, 2020

EST. No: 4, Rev. 0

31-Aug-20

13,262 sf

Description Total $/sf

01 DEMOLITION 81,252$                  $6.13

02 SITEWORK 747,204$                $56.34

03 FOUNDATIONS 275,394$                $20.77

05 SUPERSTRUCTURE 866,400$                $65.33

06 EXTERIOR SKIN 353,503$                $26.66

08 INTERIOR CONSTRUCTION 1,129,195$             $85.15

11 PLUMBING/PROCESS PIPING 91,455$                  $6.90

12 FIRE PROTECTION 55,778$                  $4.21

13 MECHANICAL 393,218$                $29.65

14 ELECTRICAL 579,686$                $43.71

15 JOBSITE MANAGEMENT -$                       $0.00

16 SITE REQUIREMENTS & PERMIT 98,295$                  $7.41

17 DESIGN SERVICES 699,423$                $52.74

19 DESIGN-BUILDER'S CONTINGENCY 132,604$                $10.00

SUBTOTAL Cost of Work 5,503,408$         $414.98

MARKUPS

General Conditions Cost (LS) 18.77% 1,024,173$             $77.23

Design-Builder's Fee (LS) 4.99% 272,419$                $20.54

TOTAL CURRENT ESTIMATE 6,800,000$         $512.74

Date Version
August 31, 2020 Estimate No. 4, Rev. 0

Phase 2 GMP Proposal

Page 4 of 12



Basis of Estimate

Estimate No. 4 Rev. 0

August 31, 2020

Project Understanding
a. This budget was generated from documents created by CIDA dated  August 24, 2020

b. Documents are titled "100% Design Development"

c. Project budget is based upon all work completed during regular work hours.

d. Revised building areas of 13,262sf for the submission of this package.  See Alternates Log for costs to restore building 

area and other add alternates.

e. In the event of conflict or discrepancy in the drawings and specifications, the drawings shall take priority in 

interpretation.  

Allowance
a. Allowances are considered to be an allotted sum of money included for a particular system or scope of work for which 

sufficient detail is not available to determine a definitive cost. These Allowances are included to project a final cost to 

include labor, materials, equipment, and any subcontractor costs. A reasonable estimate for an assumed scope and 

quality is included as a placeholder only. If Contractor’s actual costs of the work associated with listed allowances are 

more than or less than the allowance amount, the GMP shall be adjusted accordingly by change order in accordance 

with the terms of the Construction contract. Only the following Allowances’ have been included in the GMP.

i. None

Contingency
a. Cost of Work Contingency per contract documents.   
b. Design-Builder's Contingency per contract documents.   

c. Schedule
a. Preliminary estimated construction schedule is 50 weeks weeks from start of work on site.
b. The schedule has been arranged to account for long lead items. We have adjusted our start date to provide the most 

cost efficient approach.
c. Master project schedule updated August 31, 2020

vii - c. Basis of Estimate
a. Demo

Irrigon Annex hazardous material abatement estimate based on Good Faith Asbestos Survey dated 9/16/2019 by 

Tektoniks Corporation.
We assume existing Irrigon Annex concrete slab to be no more than 5" thick on average

b. Site
Per 100% Design Development Set
3rd street improvements have been incorporated into the design and GMP budget.
Landscape design assumes the value driven design adjustments as detailed in the landscaping documents will be 

approvable both at the City & County

c. Foundation
Per 100% Design Development Set
We assume a 4" slab on grade thickness

e. Superstructure
Per 100% Design Development Set

f. Exterior Skin
Per 100% Design Development Set

Morrow County Administration Building
Phase 2 GMP Proposal

Page 5 of 12



Basis of Estimate

Estimate No. 4 Rev. 0

August 31, 2020

Morrow County Administration Building
Phase 2 GMP Proposal

g. Roofing
Per 100% Design Development Set

h. Interiors
Per 100% Design Development Set
Plywood decking for storage at attic is not included.  Area and storage weight requirements to be determined cost and 

construction can begin.

i. Conveying
N/A

j. Special Construction
N/A

k. Plumbing
All waste and vents to be completed in PVC/DWV.  Water piping will be piped with copper main lines and wirsbo in the 

walls.
Pressure assist figured at water closets and urinals.  See Alternates Log for automatic flush feature options.
All lav sinks will be fed wit instant hot heaters mounted under sinks.

l. Fire Protection
Wet system at office building and a dry system at covered parking area.
All sprinklers in areas with ceilings are white semi-recessed quick response and located in quarter or center points in 

ceiling tiles.

m. HVAC & Controls
Building controls to be by manufacture.  No direct digital control system is needed or included in this budget.

n. Electrical & Low Voltage
Building assumes a 600A / 208V / 3PH service . The current overhead utility is only single phase and assume that 

Umatilla Electric Cooperative would be responsible to upgrade the OH line to bring 3PH to the site.
There is no A/V (TV cabling, speakers, microphones, speaker wiring etc. in this quote). There are raceways to an 

accessible space for the conference room TV’s.  See Alternates Log for added scope of work.
Standard battery back up power has been included for the building including the Sherriff area.  An add alternate is 

provided to utilized the existing generator if required.
An electric or glycol snow melt system has been excluded at this time.  See add alternate log for added scope

Exclusions
a. Appliances, furniture or fixtures or relocation of existing appliances, furniture or fixtures unless specifically noted
b. Active electronics
c. Audio visual cabling and equipment
d. Commissioning agent services
e. Consumption costs for power & water.

f. Any items that come up as a result of the planning or building review processes that has occurred after August 31, 

2020.
g. design and construction for interim or overflow parking located off site. 

e. BIM Model and Execution Plan
a. Due to the relatively simple MEP/FP systems and large open ceiling cavities, we do not propose the use of BIM on this 

project and have excluded all BIM costs in our Phase 2 proposal.

Page 6 of 12



Basis of Estimate

Estimate No. 4 Rev. 0

August 31, 2020

Morrow County Administration Building
Phase 2 GMP Proposal

f. Subcontractor procurement procedure 
Fortis has worked collaboratively with Morrow County to procure most of the major trades on this project.  As of this 

GMP deliverable, we have issued and been approved on the following subcontractor award recommendations:

- Demolition – Elder Demolition
- Site Work, Utilities, Concrete, Paving – James Challis Construction
- Superstructure / Roofing / Skin – Erector’s Inc.
- Plumbing – Blue Mountain Plumbing
- Fire Protection – Cascade Fire
- HVAC – Thew’s Mechanical
- Electrical - Gordon’s Electric

Our remaining procurement plan will be to continue working collaboratively with Morrow County to reconcile these 

existing subs with the completed design documents, as well as on-board new subcontractors for any remaining trades 

using a similar process. 

j. Small Business Participation/Outreach Plan  
Considering the remote location of this project site, our focus has been to recruit local subs whenever possible.  Of the 

award recommendations noted above, all but one (metal building supplier) is located with the eastern Oregon or Tri-

City region.  We achieved this by leveraging existing relationships from past eastern Oregon project as well as working 

with the Morrow Co project team to perform additional outreach  and involve new subcontractors such as Blue 

Mountain Plumbing.  We will continue this trend with all of our remaining buy-out to try and further increase the local 

subcontractor community participation in this project. 

i. Permit Strategy Plan
We are currently in for the conditional use permitting process and are anticipating a full approval by 9/30/2020.  At that 

time, we will immediately apply for the zoning permit and anticipate zoning approval within 3 weeks, or by 10/20/2020.  

At that time, we will immediately submit for the building permit, anticipating approval to proceed with construction by 

11/12/2020.  Our master schedule and design process reflect this approach, and we will continue to work 

collaboratively with Morrow County to keep the permitting process on-course. 

l. Contract Close-Out Plan
Fortis to coordinate the acquisition and organization of all closeout documentation and materials to provide to Morrow 

County. These documents can be saved in ShareFile, on CD or thumb drive, or printed and organized as a hard-copy 

in a 3-ring binder in accordance with Morrow County’s preferences.
Throughout the construction process, Fortis will coordinate with each of the sub-contractors to collect all necessary 

closeout documentation and materials. As substantial completion nears, Fortis will organize the documentation in a 

clear and understandable manner.
Documentation/materials to include:

• Operation & Maintenance information
• Product Warranties
• Workmanship Warranties – to be tied to substantial completion date
• Permits
• Submittals
• RFIs
• Architectural Bulletins
• Specifications
• Attic Stock

m. Differing Site Conditions Report
a. n/a

Page 7 of 12



Basis of Estimate

Estimate No. 4 Rev. 0

August 31, 2020

Morrow County Administration Building
Phase 2 GMP Proposal

5. Phase 2 Commercial Terms:

Guaranteed Maximum Price                                                                                                                        $6,800,000.00

Cost of Work                                                                                                                                            $5,503,408.00

Design-Builder's Lump Sum Fee                                                                                                                $272,419.00

Lump Sum General Conditions Cost                                                                                                      $1,024,173.00

Substantial Completion Date (Milestone Dates)                                                                                            10/27/2021

Final Completion Date                                                                                                                                      11/24/2021

Page 8 of 12



Additive Alternate Log

Morrow County Administration Building

Phase 2 GMP Proposal Version
Based on Documents dated August 24, 2020 Estimate No. three Rev. 03REV00

ESTIMATE - PROJECTED COST     BUDGET - TARGET

Current Estimate - Estimate No. 4 Rev. 0     Project Budget

Potential Owner Accepted Alternates     Total Project Budget

Updated Estimate with Additive Alternates    Current Variance  Includes Accepted VE

Team Recommendation Owner Decision

System

Item# Alternate Description Reconcile No Maybe Yes Yes No

1.0 49,498$          -- -- -- -- -- --

2.0 (9,482)$           -- -- -- -- -- --
Further options regarding stucco, hardi plank, or metal panel 

could bring larger reduction but require further study

3.0 (3,400)$           -- -- -- -- -- --

4.0 (10,912)$         -- -- -- -- -- --

5.0 7,440$            -- -- -- -- -- --

6.0 TBD -- -- -- -- -- -- Exact requirement and locations to be defined

7.0 13,100$          -- -- -- -- -- --
Current design includes impact resistant with plywood walls and 

steel bar entry wall and door

8.0 3,130$            -- -- -- -- -- --

9.0 5,165$            -- -- -- -- -- --

10.0 8,636$            -- -- -- -- -- --

11.0 20,536$          -- -- -- -- -- --

12.0 11,565$          -- -- -- -- -- -- Base estimate includes standard battery backup only

13.0 21,459$          -- -- -- -- -- -- Further study regarding glycol or electric system to be conducted

Subtotal 116,735$         -$                 -$                 -$                    -$                   -$               -$               

Pro-Rata Adjustments for Margins

General Conditions Cost (LS) 21,916                 -                   -                   -                      -                     -                     -                     

Design-Builder's Fee (LS) -                      -                   -                   -                      -                     -                     -                     

TOTAL 138,651$      -$           -$           -$              -$             -$             -$             

Decease masonry quantity by 431sf at center mass 

to below window line

Restore building footprint to 13,420sf at the Planning 

Department area, southside

138,651$                             

6,800,000$                

138,651$                   

6,938,651$                

Date
8/21/2020 R6

6,800,000$                          

6,800,000$                          

Comments / Action Required
Pending 

$ Value
Design 

Team

Action Date
Adjust Estimate 

Assumption

Not 

Recommended

Further Study 

Needed
Recommended

 

Accepted Rejected

Owner

Install carpet or VCT in lieu of ceramic tile at Court 

room Lobby 120 and Planning Lobby 001

Add battery operated automatic pluming fixtures

Reduce glazing quantity by 74sf - 2 windows at 

Sherriff parking area for sighting at covered parking

Install epoxy paint flooring in lieu of exposed concrete 

at Evidence garage area

Provide cabling and equipment pertaining to the AV 

system - TBD by owner

** Items provided at 100% SD budget

Add electric snow melt at Court and Veterans 

entrances - 750sf

Upgrade Sherriff/Holding Cell room to a 

premanufactured steel bar enclosure 

Add battery operated automatic bathroom amenities 

(soap, paper towel, etc.)

Provide generator (existing) backup power to Sherriff 

area in lieu of standard building battery backup

Add electrical hard-wired automatic pluming fixtures

Add electrical hard-wired automatic bathroom 

amenities (soap, paper towel, etc.)

9 of 12



Morrow County Administration Building

g. Project Safety and Job Site Hazard Analysis



 

 

 

 

 

Fortis Construction, Inc 

Safety and Jobsite 

Hazard Analysis 

 

 

 
MORROW COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

NE. Second St. and NE Main Ave. 

Irrigon, OR. 97844 



Morrow County Administration Building Safety and Jobsite Safety Analysis 
 

Page 2  

Table of Contents 

I. Fortis Philosophy 

II. Location and Leadership 

III. Logistics and Training 

IV. Fall Protection Plan 

V. Drug and Alcohol Program 

VI. Emergency Response 

a. Response Flow Chart 

b. Contact List 

c. Emergency Vehicle Access 

d. Map and Directions to Medical Clinic 

e. Fortis Information for Occupational Medicine Clinic 

f. Evacuation Procedures 

g. Point of Contact Signs 

h. Project Address Signs 

VII. Project Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) Requirements 

VIII. Fortis Site Specific Orientation 



Morrow County Administration Building Safety and Jobsite Safety Analysis 
 

Page 3  

Introduction 
 

Fortis Philosophy 

It is the philosophy of Fortis Construction, Inc. to protect the safety and health of 

employees, subcontractors, and visitors at every jobsite and home office. It is our 

belief that all injuries and accidents are preventable. It is unconscionable to think 

that we have not done everything we can to assure that every worker returns 

home at the end of the workday as healthy as they left. Fortis Construction, Inc. 

has established an Environmental Health and Safety Plan (EHSP) and this Site 

Specific Safety Plan to help us create injury free environments (IFE) and prevent 

injury and illness due to hazards. It is a requirement for employment at Fortis that 

you share our commitment to safety. A Safety Committee has been established to 

promote IFE. This committee will assist Fortis Construction, Inc. in championing 

safety at all our sites and making recommendations for ongoing improvements. 

Management 

Senior Management is committed to fostering and promoting the mission of an 

IFE on our jobsites. This calls for the elimination of unsafe acts, unsafe conditions, 

and the elimination of near-miss incidents. This is to be accomplished with: 

• Collaboration between the Owner, Fortis, and subcontractors 

• Personal commitment and leadership by all Fortis employees at each site 

• Ownership by all craft workers 

Supervision 

It is Fortis’ policy to not sacrifice safety for any reason. To effectively encourage 

and enforce safe work practices, we require all Superintendents, Project 

Managers, Project Engineers, and Safety Coordinators to become familiar with 

our policy. Our Supervisors have the authority and responsibility to take 

immediate action to correct hazardous conditions and practices without concern 

for the costs. All subcontractors, tiered subcontractors, and supervisory personnel 

are responsible for maintaining safe and healthy working conditions in their areas 



Morrow County Administration Building Safety and Jobsite Safety Analysis 
 

Page 4  

of responsibility and for enforcing all safety and health rules and regulations. It is 

understood that all contractors working at the site will subscribe to the Fortis 

Construction, Inc. EHSP in addition to their own plan. 

Site Specific Plan 

This plan has been develop specifically for this project by the project team. It is 

our attempt to customize our safety approach to the specific challenges of this 

project. Program elements may be added to or removed from this site specific 

plan as the particular project has the need or as it changes. All items not 

addressed in this specific plan are covered by the Fortis EHSP. All Fortis 

subcontractors, owner personnel, owner contractors, vendors, visitors, 

inspectors, third party contractors and manufacturer’s reps will abide by the 

requirements outlined in this Site Specific Safety Plan, Fortis EHSP, and any 

project changes that are initiated by the project team throughout the project in 

response to incidents, improvements, innovations and safety programs that are 

deemed necessary to enhance the safety on the project. 



Morrow County Administration Building Safety and Jobsite Safety Analysis 
 

Page 5  

Location and Leadership 

 
Project Address 

NE. Second St. and NE Main Ave. 

Irrigon, OR. 97844 

 

Fortis Project Team 
 

 

Fortis 

Project Executive 

Jim Maher 

(503 349-3422 

Fortis 

Project Manager 

Dan Smith 

(971) 291-8232 

Fortis 

Corporate Safety 

Demetra Star 

(503) 969-7178 

Fortis 

Superintendent 

Neil McEachin 

(971) 255-7642 

Fortis 

Project Engineer 

Lowell Weller 

(503) 894-1647 

Fortis 

Foreman 

George Bullard 

(541) 215-0551 



Morrow County Administration Building Safety and Jobsite Safety Analysis 
 

Page 6  

Site Logistics 

 
Fortis will maintain its own jobsite office. Meetings and site orientations will be held 

inside this office space. Access to this area will be off NE Main Ave. Signs will be 

posted for direction to the area. 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

Training 

All Fortis personnel and subcontractors must be trained in Fall Protection, Scissor lift, 

Boom lift, Forklift, Powder Actuated Tools, Laser Use, Scaffolds User, CPR/First Aid/ 

AED (foreman level and above), LO/TO, excavation competent persons, Scaffold 

Erectors and Emergency Procedures if relevant for their scope of 

activities/responsibilities and the training shall be provided by the employer shortly 

after arrival on site and prior to any anticipated activity requiring this training.



Morrow County Administration Building Safety and Jobsite Safety Analysis 
 

Page 7  

Training Cont. 

 
Proof of training must be provided to Fortis by the contractor at the time of Site 

Specific Orientation or periodically after the training has occurred over the course 

of the project. 

 

 

Fall Protection Plan 
 

General Plan 

Fortis requires that all subcontractors will comply with the Fortis Site Specific Fall 

Protection policy and with OR-OSHA regulations for falls and falling objects, 

however in addition to these requirements the project requires that all fall 

exposures of 6 ft or greater must be mitigated with fall protection. Furthermore, 

stair landings, loading docks and steps with 4 or more risers must be protected with 

guardrails/stair rails. Holes greater than 2” with fall exposures must be protected 

with labeled and secured hole covers able to withstand 2X the intended load. 

A six foot lanyards (such as DBI SALA ShockWave2), retractable personal lanyards 

and full Body harnesses must be utilized in boom lifts and other personal fall arrest 

applications. 

100% Tie-off is required on the roof within 10ft of low parapets and any other fall 

exposures of 6ft or greater (such as ductwork penetrations in the pre-cast panels 

whose “sill” is located below 39” from the top of the roof). When working on roofs 

with fall exposures, Fortis or the contractor will establish a warning line in accordance 

with OR-OSHA using delineators, yellow plastic chain marked every 6 ft with signage 

and will require 100% fall protection tie-off beyond the warning line. OSHA 

exceptions given to roofers for utilizing safety monitors will not be honored on this 

project, meaning that all personnel including roofers must have 100% fall protection 

(such as guardrails, hole covers or fall protection tie off) for all fall exposures on roofs. 



Morrow County Administration Building Safety and Jobsite Safety Analysis 
 

Page 8  

OSHA exceptions given to ironworkers for control decking zones and heights that 

require fall protection will not be honored on this project; meaning that all 

personnel, including ironworkers, must maintain 100% tie off or be otherwise 

protection from falls of 6ft or greater. 

Fortis requires that all subcontractors devise written fall protection plans for all 

activity that involves or anticipates fall exposures that are specific to this project 

   and the contractor’s scope of work. The written plan will be outlined on the Pre-         

Task Plan which will be reviewed and signed by all personnel in the crew. 

Equipment 

Fall protection equipment will be inspected daily by the user and annually by a 

competent person (i.e. Safety Coordinator). The annual inspection will be 

documented on the equipment itself and on a log. Any fall protection equipment 

that does not pass inspection will be removed immediately from service to be 

repaired by the manufacturer (if serviceable) or disposed of (if not). 

 

 

General Plan for Specific Areas of Fall Exposure on 
 

Applicable? Hazard Type General Location Fall Protection Method 

 Fall from 

elevation: roof 

Precast duct 

opening, Low 

Parapet areas 

Utilize temporary roof anchors installed 

as per manufacturer specification into 

precast panels or utilize cross arm strap 

installed between pre-cast openings, 

parapet anchors, horizontal lifelines 

with Self Retracting Lanyard (SRL) or 

rope grab system, SRL, or warning line 

(Plastic chain with delineators and 

signs) with 100% tie off beyond line. 



Morrow County Administration Building Safety and Jobsite Safety Analysis 
 

Page 9  

 Fall from 

elevation: working 

from aerial lifts, 

boom lifts or 

scissor lifts 

All areas Maintain 100% tie off in boomlifts, 

utilize guardrails as fall prevention in 

scissor lifts, all personnel transitioning 

from lift when elevated will utilize 

harness and lanyard and be anchored to 

rated anchor point on structure prior to 

feet leaving platform. All gates will be 

closed during use and bump guards will 

be used to alert operators of areas of 

steep slope or drops 

 Fall from 

elevation: ladders 

All areas Exposures of 6ft or greater will require 

fall arrest. Will utilize full body harness, 

6ft shock absorbing lanyard or self 

retracting lanyard with cross arm strap 

or beam clamp anchored to a point 

rated at 5000lbs within the structure. 

Fall protection will be positioned such 

that there is no swing 



Morrow County Administration Building Safety and Jobsite Hazard Analysis 
 

Page 10  

 Fall from 

elevation: 

Scaffolds 

Roof, all floors, 

Penthouse 

Rolling scaffold will be erected in 

compliance with OSHA, wheels will be 

locked while in use, scaffold will be 

inspected daily prior to use and 

documented, scaffold will be accessible 

by fix ladder. Baker scaffold whose 

platform is above 6ft will be installed 

with guardrails, if at 2nd stage, the 

scaffold will have outriggers or be 

secured to prevent tipping. Scaffold in 

high wind area or in icy conditions will 

not be use and scaffold will be secure to 

prevent tipping 
 

 

Drug and Alcohol Program 

Fortis is enrolled in the Construction Industry Drug Free Workplace Drug and Alcohol 

Program. All Fortis personnel are in compliance with this program and will be able to 

provide a Drug Free Workplace card to this effect. All future hires will either be 

enrolled in the program when dispatched or shall be enrolled in the Walls and 

Ceilings Drug and Alcohol Program. 

 

In addition to the pre-employment and random drug testing components to the 

Fortis internal program, Fortis requires a Drug and Alcohol test for reasonable 

suspicion, random and post accident (i.e. whenever personnel are injured to such a 

degree that off site medical is necessary) for the project. 



Morrow County Administration Building Safety and Jobsite Hazard Analysis 
 

Page 11  

Fortis Construction, Inc 
Drug and Alcohol Policy 

 

General Policy 

 

 

Fortis Construction, Inc. prohibits the use, possession or distribution on its premises, facilities or 

work places of any of the following: 

• Alcoholic beverages 

• Intoxicants and narcotics 

• Illegal or unauthorized drugs (including marijuana) 

• "Look-alike" (simulated) drugs 

• Related drug paraphernalia. 

 
 

Fortis Construction, Inc. employees and subcontractors must not report for duty under the 

influence of any drug, alcoholic beverage, intoxicant or narcotic or other substance (including 

legally prescribed drugs and medicines) which will in any way adversely affect their working 

ability, alertness, coordination, response, or adversely affect the safety of others on the job. 

Fortis Construction, Inc. has the right, in its discretion, to report to law enforcement officials the use, 

possession or distribution of any substance named in the first paragraph of this policy to law 

enforcement officials and to turn over to the custody of law enforcement officials any such 

substances on company property. 

 

Substance abuse testing will be conducted for random, probable cause or suspicion and post 

incident/accident. 

 

 

 

Substance Abuse Testing 

 
 

Random Testing 

 

 

Five personnel will be randomly selected each month by Fortis to undergo a drug and alcohol 

screening. The participants will be randomly selected from the attendance sheet collected at the 

weekly All-Hands safety meeting or Sign-up sheets. Fortis will notify an employer via letter and in 

person of the selectees the same day that the testing is due. Selectees will be required to submit 

to a drug and alcohol test the same day of selection. Contractors with a union or company Drug 

and Alcohol program will be exempt from random testing but must have a current drug card. 



Morrow County Administration Building Safety and Jobsite Hazard Analysis 
 

Page 12  

Fortis requires that a contractor supervisory personnel escort the selectee to the clinic. A copy of 

the chain of custody paperwork issued at the collection clinic shall be provided to Fortis as proof 

that the testing has occurred and has occurred within the time limitations. Failure to submit to 

the test will be considered a positive test. 

 

Worker Testing 
 

Each controlling employer will certify that they have a drug, alcohol and other prohibited articles 

policy that incorporates as a minimum the following requirements: 

 

• When an applicant submits to random testing, post accident or reasonable suspicion and passes 

the required test, he/she will be eligible for continued access to the project. If the applicant fails 

the required test, he/she will be removed from the project and he/she may reapply for access 

considerations to the project after a period of no less than one year has elapsed. This one year 

waiting period may be waived if the applicant completes an acceptable drug/alcohol 

rehabilitation program and presents acceptable proof of completion of the program to the 

controlling employer’s personnel/safety office. An applicant who fails the second test will not be 

considered for employment at the project premises for a period of no less than one year. 

 

• All workers who refuse to submit to a drug and alcohol test, or who fail to pass a drug and 

alcohol test will be removed from the project premises by the controlling employer and will be 

referred to their personnel management for disciplinary action. 

 

 

Financial Obligation of the Controlling Employer 
 

The contractors’ employer will bear the cost of time, transportation, and the actual testing for 

workers who are being given random, post accident and reasonable suspicion drug and breathe 

alcohol tests. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



Morrow County Administration Building Safety and Jobsite Hazard Analysis 
 

Page 13  

Testing Criteria- Substances for Urine-analysis and Cut off levels: 
 
 

 Initial Cutoff Confirm Cutoff 

Ethanol Alcohol 0.03 g/dl 0.03 g/dl 

Amphetamines 1000 ng/ml 500 ng/ml 

Methamphetamines 1000 ng/ml 500 ng/ml 

Barbiturates 300 ng/ml 200 ng/ml 

Cocaine 300 ng/ml 150 ng/ml 

Opiates 2000 ng/ml 2000 ng/ml 

THC (Marijuana) 50 ng/ml 15 ng/ml 

 

Invalid Specimens 
When invalid samples are collected are outside the temperature limits individuals will be given 

one other opportunity to give a specimen within ONE HOUR, but must not leave the testing 

facility during that waiting period. Adulterated or tampered-with samples will be considered 

invalid. 

When a post-employment test produces an invalid sample, refusal to submit a new valid 

specimen or failure to cooperate with the screening test will result in the individual being 

ineligible to work on the premises and/or projects for a period of one year. 

If the new sample tests NEGATIVE, the individual is considered to be eligible for employment. 
 

If the new sample tests POSITIVE or is again INVALID, the individual is deemed to have FAILED 

THE TEST and will be considered ineligible to perform work on the project. 

 
Confidentiality 
Fortis Construction, Inc. will take appropriate and reasonable steps to maintain the confidentiality of 

information generated by the implementation and enforcement of this policy and these procedures. 

Disclosure will be made only in appropriate circumstances. The controlling employer will be 

responsible for maintaining the confidentiality of all information generated by the implementation 

and enforcement of this policy and these procedures for their own workers. Fortis will have the right 

to audit compliance with this policy and these procedures by the controlling employer, which will 

include access to this confidential information. 



Morrow County Administration Building Safety and Jobsite Hazard Analysis 
 

Page 14  

Training 

The Project Superintendent will take the necessary steps to assure that supervisors and 

management personnel are trained to recognize appropriate symptoms and to administer this policy 

in a consistent, confidential, and intelligent manner. 

 

Subcontractors and Suppliers 

Fortis Construction, Inc. and all subcontractors will include the provisions of this policy and these 

procedures, or another program acceptable to Fortis, in their contracts with tiered subcontractors, 

suppliers, consultants, agents, and others involved in providing goods or services on the project 

premises, and will require that they do the same with respect to their lower-tier tiered 

subcontractors, suppliers, etc. 
 

POSTING AND DISTRIBUTION 

Significant sections of this policy and these procedures will be posted in conspicuous locations on the 

project premises and will be given to each applicant and worker. Fortis may revise and amend this 

policy and these procedures asrequired. 
 

PROCEDURES FOR EXAMINATION - POST-ACCIDENTSCREENING 

An employer’s supervisor/safety will be required to accompany their injured worker(s) to the 

medical facility. Employers will certify any worker(s) involved in an accident or incident tested 

negative for drugs and alcohol prior to allowing them to return to the project premises. 

 

The controlling employer’s supervisor will see that the worker and the physician sign and complete 

the verification and consent form. One copy will be attached to the field accident report submitted 

by the supervisor to Fortis Construction, Inc. The worker or his/her supervisor will present the 

treating physician, clinic or medical facility with the remaining copies. The physician will verify that 

the samples were collected by signing the form and returning it to the supervisor. A copy will be 

retained by the physician, clinic or medical facility, giving a copy to the worker. The doctor will sign 

all chain-of-custody documents and ship any specimens to the designated laboratory system. 

 

If the worker refuses to give a specimen of body fluid, the supervisor is to call Fortis Project 

Management. Fortis Project Management are to advise the worker again that the refusal to submit 

to drug screening is a violation of the Fortis Project Safety Plan’s Drug, Alcohol and Other Prohibited 

Articles Policy and that refusal will result in termination. 

 

If the injured worker continues to refuse to submit to drug screening, the doctor or clinic will be 

advised to treat the worker for his/her injuries. The supervisor will return tothe project, meet with 

the Fortis Project Management to prepare appropriate termination forms. Cause for termination 

will state - “Worker refuses to comply with written Fortis Construction, Inc. Project Safety Plan.” A 

copy of this termination form will be included in the worker’s file. The doctor will sign all chain-of- 

custody documents and ship any specimens to the designated laboratory system. 



Morrow County Administration Building Safety and Jobsite Hazard Analysis 
 

Page 15  

Emergency Response 

 

Emergency Response Flow Chart 
 

Contact List in Case of Emergency 

Morrow County Admin Bldg 
Crisis Team Leader Neil McEachin Mobile (971) 255-7642 

Corporate Spokesperson Jim Maher Mobile (503) 349-3422 

Project Spokesperson Dan Smith Mobile (971) 291-8232 

Project Spokesperson Lowell Weller Mobile (503) 894-1647 

Corporate Safety Demetra Star Mobile 503-969-7178 

 

 



Morrow County Administration Building Safety and Jobsite Hazard Analysis 
 

Page 16  

 

 

 

Emergency Call 

911 
Project Address: 

NE. Second St. and NE Main Ave. 

Irrigon, OR. 97844 



Morrow County Administration Building Safety and Jobsite Hazard Analysis 
 

Page 17  

Fortis – Superintendent 

Fortis – Superintendent 

 

Service 

 

Provider Contact No. 

External: 
 

Ambulance 911 911 

 

Police/SHERIFF 911 911 

Fire 911 911 

Hazardous Waste   

OSHA OSHA        (503) 378-3272 

Utility Locate Service The Utility Notification Center   811-(800) 332-2344 

Trailer const power Umatilla Electric Co-Op (541) 567.6414 

Light & Power Co. 
Umatilla Electric Co-Op (541) 567.6414 

Sewer 
City of Irrigon, Water/Sewer 

 

(541) 922.3047 

 

Gas Company 
Cascade Natural Gas (541) 276.1611 

Water 
City of Irrigon, Water/Sewer 

 
(541) 922.3047 

Weather 
Fortis – Superintendent 

Internal: 

 

Project Manager 
 

Dan Smith 
 

(971) 291-8232 

 

Regional EHS 

 

Demetra Star 

 

(503)-969-7178 

 

Project Superintendent 
 

Neil McEachin 
 

(971)-255-7642 

 

Project Engineer 
 

Lowell Weller 
 

(503) 894-1647 

 

Project Safety Manager 
 

Tom Sowa 
 

(503) 309-3031 

 

 

 

 

 
 



Morrow County Administration Building Safety and Jobsite Hazard Analysis 
 

Page 18
9 

 

Map and Directions to Occupational Medicine Clinic and ER 

Every effort will be made to prevent injuries; however should one occur, Fortis is 

committed to providing the best possible care to the injured employee. When injury is 

not urgent in nature (such as for back strains, knee strains, bumps, small lacerations, 

eye injuries and such) Fortis will utilize and recommend to subcontractors, The Irrigon 

Occupational Medicine Clinic at 220 NE Main Ave, in order to best manage the severity 

of the injury. In addition, any injury requiring outside medical care, will be treated in a 

timely fashion and the injured employee will undergo a urinalysis and breathalyzer 

test for drugs and alcohol. 

 

 



Morrow County Administration Building Safety and Jobsite Hazard Analysis 
 

Page 20  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



Morrow County Administration Building Safety and Jobsite Hazard Analysis 
 

Page 20  

Evacuation Procedures and Assembly Area 

The notice to evacuate the project will be signaled with an air horn in a repeating 

pattern of three blasts, followed by a short pause. The evacuation marshalling 

area is located [near the contractor’s lunch trailers/Parking lot]. All contractors 

are expected to check in with their foremen who will report to the Fortis 

superintendent. No one is to return to the building or leave site until the “All 

Clear” is given by the appropriate authorities or by the Fortis superintendent or 

representative. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

“Man-down” Emergency 

Call 911  Address: 

NE. Second St. and NE Main Ave. 

Irrigon, OR. 97844 

to Initiate Emergency Response 

Emergency Evacuation 

Signaled with Air-horn (3 Blasts, 

pause, 3 Blasts) 
Assembly Area: Fortis Jobsite Trailer 



Morrow County Administration Building Safety and Jobsite Hazard Analysis 
 

Page 21 
 

Project Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) Requirements 
 

All personnel in all construction zones on the [project name ] project will be 

required to wear the following PPE: Hardhat, safety glasses meeting ANSI z87.1 

(prescription safety glasses must provide adequate coverage to meet this 

standard (i.e. side-shields, or protected with OTG safety glasses)), high visibility, 

ANSI Class 2 vest or shirt or jacket (fluorescent yellow/lime or orange, no red or 

hunter green), shirt with a minimum of 4” sleeve, long pants (no sweatpants or 

shorts), and substantial work boots (above ankles). Gloves must be worn when 

needed when hands are at risk and must be specific to the task. 

As the project progresses into spring and summer, the project team may deem 

the lighting and vehicle traffic to be such that the ANSI Class 2 Reflective Vest 

requirement can be downgraded to just a high visibility vest, shirt or jacket(i.e. no 

longer require a Class 2 outer-garment). 

A form of double eye protection (safety glasses & face shield/hood) or goggles or 

spect-a-goggles must be worn when personnel are drilling, cutting, grinding, 

welding or rotohammering at or over the shoulder level. 



Morrow County Administration Building

h. Project Phasing/Staging Plan



Staging
Area

Potential Lay
Down Area

Potential Lay
Down Area

Site Office

Gate

Gate

Gate

Gate Gate



Morrow County Administration Building

k. OQ/QC Plan



Name Email Phone Present?

Neil McEachin 971.255.7642 N or Y

George Bullard 541.215.0551 N or Y

Dan Smith 971.291.8232 N or Y

Lowell Weller 503.894.1647 N or Y

00-01 Check Box

NO

00-02 Check Box

Item #

01-01

Meeting #

Responsible to Schedule & 

Run Meeting Check Box

1 Neil/Lowell

2 Neil/Lowell

3 Neil/Lowell

Other

MORROW COUNTY GOV. CENTER

Internal Quality Control Kick-off Meeting Agenda & Status Report

Meeting Date & Time: 

Meeting Location: Fortis Job Site Construction Office

Comments:

Goal of Meeting:

All projects are different, and should therefore have a customized quality control program.  The goal of this meeting is to discuss the 

specifics of this project, and assign action items to ensure a quality result.  

C
h

e
c
k
 b

o
x
e

s
 b

e
lo

w
 w

h
e

n
 i
te

m
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

d
, 

c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

, 
o

r 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
. 

 "
X

" 
w

ill
 t

u
rn

 b
o

x
 g

re
e

n
. 

 U
p

d
a

te
 m

o
n

th
ly

 a
t 

m
in

im
u

m
.

Other

Other

Agenda:

01 - Precon QC Measures 

00 - General, 01 - Preconstruction QC Measures, 02 - Construction QC Measures, 03 - Miscellaneous Items

Precon QC Measures - Preconstruction Meetings

Discuss as a group which trades should have preconstruction meetings 

prior to mobilization and fill out the below table for this project:

Name

Other

Is there any reason why this project should NOT have a customized 

quality control plan?  If the answer to this is "Yes", than explain this in the 

"comments" section below and proceed no further.

Trade/Subcontractor

Civil/Site Work

Description 

Project Address:  NE 2nd./Main Street, Irrigon, OR.

Foreman

Superintendent

Project Engineer

Invited (Fortis:

Project Manager

Role

00 - General

General - QC Discussion

Foundatitons / Concrete

Underslab MEP 

Meeting Date

11/12/2020

12/3/2020

12/4/2020

General - Quality Champion 

Identify team member that will take the lead on the follow-through of this 

quality control program.  This person will need to make sure all action 

items assigned in this meeting are completed throughout the course of the 

project. (Typically Project Superintendent)

Neil McEachin/Lowell 

Weller

Fortis Project #XXXXXX Page 1 of 4



4 Neil/Lowell

5 Neil/Lowell

6 Neil/Lowell

7 Neil/Lowell

8 Neil/Lowell

9

10

01-02

Item # Who will take lead? Check Box

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

01-03 Check Box

Yes

01-04

Meeting #

Responsible to Schedule & 

Run Meeting Check Box

1 Neil/Lowell

01-05 Check Box

No

Comments: Window Testing, QED Consultants

Precon QC Measures - Mock-ups / First in Place Inspections

Discuss as a group which items should have first in place inspections, and 

whether any stand alone mock-ups should be done.  Fill out the below 

table for this project:

Description 

Target Date for Inspection 

or Stand Alone Mock-Up

Steel Erectors / Crane Operator

Roofers

Weather Barrier

3/16/2021

3/16/2021

Precon QC Measures - Envelope Coordination Consultant

Discuss the envelope of the building and how the risk can be mitigated.  Is 

there an option/need to hire a 3rd party consultant?  Discuss as group and 

implement prior to scheduling Envelope Coordination Meeting.

Precon QC Measures - Other Quality-Critical Components

Are there any other building components that are quality-critical for 

success of the project (ie owner hot-button, architectural center-piece, 

etc.)?  How will the team ensure quality for this component?

2/2/2021

Masonry 3/23/2021

Storefronts 3/23/2021

Precon QC Measures - Envelope Coordination Meeting

Discuss as a group when the appropriate time is to hold an envelope 

coordination meeting and schedule the meeting below. 

Subject Meeting Date

Envelope Coordination meeting 3/17/2021

Fortis Project #XXXXXX Page 2 of 4



01-06 Check Box

No

01-07 Check Box

No

Item #

02-01 Check Box

02-02 Check Box

02-03 Check Box

Leslie/Neil

02-04 Check Box

Comments: Yes, Folder is in place.

Rolling Completion Log will be utilized.

Comments: Architect of Record will make Site Walk approximately 

monthly.   Architecture (Shell) - 6 Visits. TI (Interior) - 4 Visits. All 

remaining trades, up to 1 site visit each.                                                                                                

Lowell

Name

Name

Neil/Lowell

Name

Leslie/Neil/Lowell

Name

Morrow County

02 - Construction QC Measures

Construction QC Measures - Commissioning

How is this project going to minimize punch list?  Is a Rolling Completion 

log going to be utilized?  CxAlloy?  Who is taking the lead on this?  If 

CxAlloy is to be utilized, reference CxAlloy Guide and Project Set-up 

Form.

Construction QC Measures - Accessibility of Current Documents

Construction QC Measures - Zero Punch List Program

Has the public folder been set-up on Sharefile and a process established 

for keeping contract documents (dwgs, specs, RFIs, submittals, etc) 

updated and easily accessible?  Who is the document control champion 

for this project?

Has a commissioning agent been hired for this project?  If not, how will the 

team ensure MEP systems are functional?  (Utilize Cx Checklist in this 

case)  

Description 

Construction QC Measures - Quality Control Walks

Comments:

Precon QC Measures - Submittal Review

Any special submittal review requirements, such as 'C,D & E (comply, 

deviate, exception) Review'?  Discuss as group.

Comments:

Comments:

Has anything been purchased from trades above and beyond standard 

contract language in terms of quality control?  Discuss as group.

Precon QC Measures - Contract Language

Should this project hold regular "quality control only" walk-throughs?  How 

often should they be (weekly? Quantity in place?)  Should they include any 

parties other than Fortis?  Provide name(s) of Fortis/CIDA representives 

responsible to schedule/lead these walks and hold sub/team accountable. 

May be multiple people by trade)

Fortis Project #XXXXXX Page 3 of 4



02-05

Meeting #

Responsible to Schedule & 

Run Meeting Check Box

1 Morrow County

Item #

03-01 Check Box

03-02 Check Box

03-03 Check BoxMiscellaneous Items - Meeting Minutes

Who will type minutes from this meeting and distribute to all team 

members for reference throughout the project?

Name

Lowell

END

Comments: This Action Item is an Owner Allowance

Is there any new or existing technology that can be utilized to help with the 

implementation of this program?  

Miscellaneous Items - Technology

Miscellaneous Items - Lessons Learned

Discuss as a group positive and negative quality control experiences from 

past projects, and how those lessons learned can be applied to this 

project.

03 - Miscellaneous Items
Description 

Construction QC Measures - Commissioning Kick-off Meeting

Discuss as a group when the appropriate time is to hold an commissioning 

kick-off meeting and schedule the meeting below. 

Subject Meeting Date

Commissioning Kick-off meeting TBD

Comments:

Comments:

Fortis Project #XXXXXX Page 4 of 4











































Make Morrow County Count! 

* 2020 Census Opportunity * 
Census Takers will set-up in Heppner 
Thursday, Sept. 3rd & Friday, Sept. 4th 

10:00 a.m.-2:00 p.m. 
Murray’s Garden – between Sage Clothing and Kuhn Law 

Office on Main Street 
 

Need transportation to the location? 
Call The Loop for times and availability: 

1-844-676-5667 or 541-676-5667         

Todos cuentan en el condado de Morrow! 
*Oportunidad de censo 2020* 

Los tomadores del censo estaran en Heppner 
Murray’s Garden –  entre Sage Clothing y Kuhn Law Office 

Jueves 3 y Viernes 4 de Septiembre 
10:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m. 

 
Si necesita transporte a la locasion 

Llame a The Loop para el horario desponible: 
1-844-676- 5667 o 541-676-5667                     


	Agenda
	Minutes
	OLCC License App - Marker 40 Golf Club/POM
	Contract w/Health District - SBHC
	Request to Purchase Console - Sheriff's Office
	Irrigon Bld Update - GMP
	Letter to Governor, Phase II
	Administrator's Report
	Sheriff's Office Report
	Treasurer's Report
	Correspondence

